
 
 

 
 
 
Variance requests may be subject to change or alteration upon review of request during preparation of the staff memorandum. Therefore, Sections of 
the Code of Ordinances are subject to change. Changes will be noted during public hearing meeting. 
 
Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Meridian Township Board by contacting:  
Assistant Planner Keith Chapman, 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4580 - Ten Day Notice is Required.  
Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864 Township Hall 
 
 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 
 
 

AGENDA 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN  

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING 
June 15, 2022 6:30 pm 

 

 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER     
2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
3. CORRECTIONS, APPROVAL AND RATIFICATION OF MINUTES 

A. Wednesday, May 18, 2022 
 

4. COMMUNICATIONS 
A. Don & Brenda Behm RE: ZBA #22-06-15-1 

 
5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
6. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. ZBA CASE NO. 22-06-15-1 (6089 E. Lake Dr.), Roger Taylor, 6089 E. Lake Dr., Haslett, 

MI 48840 
 
DESCRIPTION: 6089 East lake Drive 
TAX PARCEL:   02-408-010 
ZONING DISTRICT:  RB (Single Family, High Density), Lake Lansing Overlay 
                
The variance requested is to allow an accessory building that does not meet the side yard and 
building separation setbacks at 6089 East Lake Drive. 

 
7. OTHER BUSINESS 
8. PUBLIC REMARKS 
9. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
10. ADJOURNMENT 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS REGULAR MEETING MINUTES *DRAFT* 
5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, Ml 48864-1198 
(517) 853-4000 
WEDNESDAY, May 18TH, 2022 
REGULAR TELEVISED MEETING 
 
PRESENT:  Chair Mansour, Member Deschaine, Member Koenig 
 
ABSENT:    Vice-Chair Field Foster 
 
STAFF:        Director of Community and Planning Timothy Schmitt 
 
 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER  

Chair Mansour called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m.  
 
Chair Mansour Called the roll of the Board. Vice Chair Field-Foster is absent, all others present. 

 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Member Deschaine moved to approve the agenda as presented. Seconded by Member Koenig. 
 
ROLE CALL VOTE:  
YEAS: Members Koenig, Member Deschaine, Chair Mansour  
NAYS: None 

 
Motion carried:   3-0 

 
3. CORRECTIONS, APPROVAL & RATIFICATION OF MINUTES  

A. April 20, 2022 Meeting Minutes 
 
Chair Mansour moved to approve the minutes from Wednesday, April 20, 2022 as presented. 
Seconded by Member Deschaine. 
 
ROLE CALL VOTE:  
YEAS: Members Koenig, Member Deschaine, Chair Mansour  
NAYS: None 

 
Motion carried:   3-0 
 
4. COMMUNICATIONS  
 

A. Jerry Fedewa RE: ZBA Case No. 22-04-20-2 (6099 E. Lake Dr.)  
 
Director Schmitt explained Mr. Fedewa has withdrawn his previous request for variance as 
under the new Ordinance recently adopted by the Township Board he believes he can 
construct his building without variance. Staff has advised Mr. Fedewa that he must still 
provide proof that he will not require a variance before construction begins.  
 



5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS-NONE 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. ZBA CASE NO. 22-05-18-1 (4660 S. Hagadorn Rd.), Johnson Sign Company, 2240 
Lansing Ave., Jackson, MI 49202 

 
DESCRIPTION: 4660 S. Hagadorn Road  
TAX PARCEL: 20-301-003  
ZONING DISTRICT: C-2 (Commercial) 

 
The variance requested is to install two new wall signs that exceed the permitted square 
footage at 4660 S. Hagadorn Rd. 
 

                                                           Director Schmitt outlined the case for discussion. 
 
Applicant Jim Johnson, 2240 Lansing Ave., Jackson, MI further outlined the case for discussion. 
 
MSU Health Care representative, Melisa Jegla, 2836 Montego Dr., Lansing, MI, further outlined 
the case for discussion. 
 
Member Koenig asked if the building has road frontage on all four sides and if any side of the 
building is considered a rear façade. 
 
Director Schmitt replied he believes the front yard is historically on Hagadorn Rd., however this 
is a quadruple fronted lot. 
 
Member Koenig stated the applicant is allowed 311 Square Feet of signage, which the applicant 
is in compliance with. The only issue is the number of signs, however there were already three 
signs in the past so he sees no major issue with this request.  
 
Chair Mansour agreed with Member Koenig’s assessment and asked Ms. Jegla for more 
information on the pharmacy sign. 
 
Ms. Jegla replied the pharmacy sign is on the south side of the building where people would 
generally enter the lot however there are pharmacy entrances on all four sides of the building. 
 
Member Deschaine stated this parcel is unique as it’s the only six story building in the township 
he is aware of. 

 
Chair Mansour read review criteria one from Section 86-221 of the Code of Ordinances which 
states unique circumstances exist that are peculiar to the land or structure, that are not 
applicable to other land or structures in the same zoning district and these unique 
circumstances are not self-created. 
 
Chair Mansour stated criteria one has been met. 
 



Chair Mansour read review criteria two which states strict interpretation and enforcement of 
the literal terms and provisions of this chapter would result in practical difficulties that would 
prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose. 
 
Chair Mansour stated criteria two has been met. 
 
Chair Mansour read review criteria three which states Granting the variance is the minimum 
action necessary which would carry out the spirit of this Zoning Ordinance, secure public 
safety, and provide substantial justice. 
 
Chair Mansour stated criteria three has been met. 
 
Chair Mansour read review criteria four which states granting the variance will not adversely 
affect adjacent land or the essential character in the vicinity of the property. 
 
Chair Mansour stated Criteria four has been met. 
 
Chair Mansour read review criteria five which states Granting the variance will be generally 
consistent with public interest and the purposes and intent of this chapter. 
 
Chair Mansour stated criteria five has been met. 

 
Member Koenig moved to approve ZBA CASE NO. 22-05-18-1, Johnson Sign Company, 
2240 Lansing Ave., Jackson, MI 49202. Seconded by Member Deschaine. 

 
ROLE CALL VOTE:  
YEAS: Members Koenig, Member Deschaine, Chair Mansour  
NAYS: None 

 
Motion carried:   3-0 
 

B. (1830 W. Grand River), MAG OKF RE, LLC, 1830 W. Grand River Ave., Okemos, MI 
48864  
 

DESCRIPTION: 1830 W. Grand River Avenue  
TAX PARCEL: 22-176-017  
ZONING DISTRICT: C-3 (Commercial)  
 
The variance requested is to install a wall sign greater than the permitted square footage at 
1830 W. Grand River Ave. 
 
Director Schmitt outlined the case for discussion. 

 
Applicant’s representative, Lonny Przybylinski, further outlined the case for discussion. 
 
Member Deschaine asked if Ford is requiring the name of the dealership and the community 
they are dealing in. 
 
Mr. Przybylinski stated it is a requirement. 



 
Chair Mansour asked if the text “Morrie’s”, will be the same size as “Merrill” that was on the 
previous sign. 
 
Jim Johnson, 2240 Lansing Ave., Jackson, MI replied the Merrill letters were 26 in. high by 17.4 
ft. wide, and he assumes they are very similar in size. 
 
Member Koenig clarified the lettering font on the both signs is 26 inches high making them the 
same size. 
 
Chair Mansour read review criteria one from Section 86-221 of the Code of Ordinances which 
states unique circumstances exist that are peculiar to the land or structure, that are not 
applicable to other land or structures in the same zoning district and these unique 
circumstances are not self-created. 
 
Chair Mansour stated criteria one has been met. 
 
Chair Mansour read review criteria two which states strict interpretation and enforcement of 
the literal terms and provisions of this chapter would result in practical difficulties that would 
prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose. 
 
Chair Mansour stated criteria two has been met. 
 
Chair Mansour read review criteria three which states Granting the variance is the minimum 
action necessary which would carry out the spirit of this Zoning Ordinance, secure public 
safety, and provide substantial justice. 
 
Chair Mansour stated criteria three has been met. 
 
Chair Mansour read review criteria four which states granting the variance will not adversely 
affect adjacent land or the essential character in the vicinity of the property. 
 
Chair Mansour stated Criteria four has been met. 
 
Chair Mansour read review criteria five which states Granting the variance will be generally 
consistent with public interest and the purposes and intent of this chapter. 
 
Chair Mansour stated criteria five has been met. 
 

Chair Mansour moved to approve ZBA CASE NO. 22-05-18-2 with the condition that this is the 
controlling variance approval for all signs located on the south façade of the building located 
at 1830 West Grand River Avenue. Seconded by Member Deschaine. 

 
ROLE CALL VOTE:  
YEAS: Members Koenig, Member Deschaine, Chair Mansour  
NAYS: None 

 
Motion carried:   3-0 

 
 



 
7. OTHER BUSINESS -NONE 

 
8. PUBLIC REMARKS 
 

Chair Mansour opened the floor for public remarks at 7:13 pm 
 

NONE 
 

Chair Mansour closed public remarks at 7:13 pm 
 
9. MEMBER COMMENTS 

 
Member Deschaine commended Chair Mansour for how she has handled the last two meetings. 

 
 

10.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Chair Mansour moved to Adjourn.  

Chair Mansour Adjourned the meeting at 7:13 pm. 

















































1

Keith Chapman

From: Brenda Viers <blviers69@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, June 7, 2022 6:18 PM
To: Keith Chapman
Subject: Roger Taylor
Attachments: 20220607_174348.jpg

Mr. Chapman, 
 
Please add this photo to my file.  This is what I came home to.  Homeowners do not own the last 15 feet leading up to 
the lake.  Mr. Taylor has been taking pictures of me, my family and any female that comes to our home for 4.5 years. He 
installed this camera and several posts on the common area.  Tim has told me that the township has no authority over 
this area of land.  However, a man has no right to continually take photos of me.  He also put this pile of seaweed and a 
dead fish right next to my dock.  The fish was wedged between two posts.  Last night my son and I saw it over on his 
side.  This was intentional.  Roger is trying to invoke a verbal fight or trying to get us to call the police.  He was told over 
the holiday weekend to stop abusing 911 which he called twice in one day.  Maybe the chief of police needs to see my 
file or attend the meeting next Wednesday.   Someone needs to do something.  
 
Thank you  
Brenda Behm  
517 896 6195  
   





1

Keith Chapman

From: Brenda Viers <blviers69@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, June 7, 2022 6:22 PM
To: Keith Chapman
Subject: Roger Taylor

Mr. Chapman 
 
I forgot to mention that the post next to my dock and one just out of view have tar all over them.  He has pounded them 
in deep.  If we take them out he will just pound them in further.  A little girl got tar all over herself over the holiday 
weekend.   I put a plastic bag over it and he ran down and took it off.  He then called 911. 
 
Brenda Behm  



±

Mt. Hope Rd.

Meridian Township

Location Map
1. ZBA #22-06-15-1 (6089 E. Lake Dr.)

Ma
rsh

 Rd
.

Jolly Rd.

Haslett Rd.

Lake Lansing Rd.

Ok
em

os
 R

d.

Ha
ga

do
rn

 R
d.

Pa
rk 

La
ke

 R
d.

Do
bie

 R
d.

Va
n A

tta
 R

d.

Me
rid

ian
 R

d.

Gree
n R

d.

Co
rn

ell
 R

d.
Grand River Ave.

kj1



VARIANCE APPLICATION SUPPLEMENT 
 
 
A variance will be granted, if the following Review Criteria are met: 
 

(1) Unique circumstances exist that are peculiar to the land or structure, that are not 
applicable to other land or structures in the same zoning district and these unique 
circumstances are not self-created. 
 

(2) Strict interpretation and enforcement of the literal terms and provisions of this 
chapter would result in practical difficulties that would prevent the owner from using 
the property for a permitted purpose.  

 
(3) Granting the variance is the minimum action necessary which would carry out the 

spirit of this zoning ordinance, secure public safety, and provide substantial justice. 
 

(4) Granting the variance will not adversely affect adjacent land or the essential character 
in the vicinity of the property. 

 
(5) Granting the variance will be generally consistent with public interest and the 

purposes and intent of this chapter. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

To:  Zoning Board of Appeals 

From:  Keith Chapman, Assistant Planner 

Date:  June 7, 2022 

Re:  ZBA Case No. 22-06-15-1 (6089 E. Lake Drive) 

 

ZBA CASE NO.:  22-06-15-1 (6089 E. Lake Drive), Roger Taylor, 6089 E. Lake Drive, 
Haslett, MI 48840   

DESCRIPTION:  6089 E. Lake Drive 
TAX PARCEL:  02-408-010 
ZONING DISTRICT: RB (Single Family, High Density), Lake Lansing Overlay 
 
The applicant is requesting variances from the following sections of the Code of Ordinances:  
 

• Section 86-565(3), In a side yard. No accessory building shall be closer than five feet to any 
lot line. 

• Section 86-502, An accessory building not attached and not made a part of the principal 
building as provided in the preceding statement shall not be nearer than 10 feet from any 
other separate structure on the same lot. 

 
The applicant has requested a variance to allow an existing accessory building to project into the 
side yard and building separation setback located at 6089 East Lake Drive. The approximate 0.36-
acre site is zoned RB (Single Family, High Density) and Lake Lansing Overlay District. 
 
The applicant had two separate sheds that are located in the side yard (North side). The sheds are 
nonconforming because they do not meet the required five-foot side yard setback and 10-foot 
building separation setback. An addition that connected the two sheds was added without a 
building permit. The addition expanded the nonconformity, which is prohibited by Ordinance. 
Section 86-618 (1) states nonconforming single-family structures may be altered, expanded, or 
modernized without prior approval of the Zoning Board of Appeals; provided, that such structural 
alteration or extension shall not increase the extent of the nonconformity and shall satisfy all other 
applicable site development regulations. 
 
At the closest point, the accessory building is located 1.1’ feet from the side property line and 
approximately two feet from the existing single-family home. The applicant is requesting a 3.9’ 
variance for the side yard setback requirement of five feet. Also, an eight-foot variance for the 
building separation setback requirement of 10 feet. 
 
 
Attachments 
1. Application materials 
2. Site location map 



















Variance Questions 
 

1.This is unique due to the existing fence that was installed last year , this 
situation made our east side shed , inaccessible for our use .Due to close 
property lines. 

2.The east side shed was used for lawn and garden equipment ,along with 
plywood , shingles - that would not get by the existing fence . If so , the 
equipment had to be lifted over the existing fence , causing an unsafe 
condition. 

3.If granted , it would allow sheds to be joined by creating a larger opening 
inside the shed , instead of the narrow passage outside by the fence . 

4.The sheds if joined by breezeway , would enhance the property without 
affecting adjacent properties . 

5.My property by joining of the sheds , makes our property values greater 
by enhancing aesthetics and make it easier to move things from shed to 
shed to access the lake property . First , it would all be vinyl sided that 
looks exactly the same as the other shed. Second , it would be easier to 
move things in larger opening inside the west side shed to the east side 
shed. Plus , less probably mishaps , it would be a safer situation . 

Roger and Ginnie Taylor 





6065

6103

6101

6085

1236

6099

6093

6097

6089

6111

1247

6100

6098

6096

6098

1160

1153

6082

1241

6061

60596045
1235

1229

Lake Lansing

RB

RARB

RR

E Lake Dr
Woodwind Trl

Greenleaf St

Pheasant St

E Lake Dr

±


	June 15, 2022 Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting Agenda
	6. NEW BUSINESS
	A. ZBA CASE NO. 22-06-15-1 (6089 E. Lake Dr.), Roger Taylor, 6089 E. Lake Dr., Haslett, MI 48840
	The variance requested is to allow an accessory building that does not meet the side yard and building separation setbacks at 6089 East Lake Drive.

	May 18 2022 ZBA Draft Minutes
	PRESENT:  Chair Mansour, Member Deschaine, Member Koenig
	6. NEW BUSINESS

	Behm File
	Behm Email
	Behm Pic
	Behm Email 2
	ZBA location map
	VARIANCE APPLICATION SUPPLEMENT-review criteria only 2022
	STAFF REPORT
	Application
	Variance questions answered
	1.This is unique due to the existing fence that was installed last year , this situation made our east side shed , inaccessible for our use .Due to close property lines.
	2.The east side shed was used for lawn and garden equipment ,along with plywood , shingles - that would not get by the existing fence . If so , the equipment had to be lifted over the existing fence , causing an unsafe condition.
	3.If granted , it would allow sheds to be joined by creating a larger opening inside the shed , instead of the narrow passage outside by the fence .
	4.The sheds if joined by breezeway , would enhance the property without affecting adjacent properties .
	5.My property by joining of the sheds , makes our property values greater by enhancing aesthetics and make it easier to move things from shed to shed to access the lake property . First , it would all be vinyl sided that looks exactly the same as the ...
	Roger and Ginnie Taylor

	Roger Taylor _ Letter Size
	Site Location Map

